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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : Hon.
V. : Crim. No.
LEROY BROWN : 18 U.S.C. 8§ 371, 666 & 2

26 U.S.C. § 7201

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting in Newark, charges:

COUNT 1
(Conspiracy)

Background
1. At all times relevant to this Indictment, unless
otherwise noted:

The Defendant and Others

a. Defendant LEROY BROWN, a resident of Montclair,
New Jersey, was employed as a Financial Manager at the Salvation
Army’s offices at 45 Central Avenue in Newark, New Jersey.

b. The Salvation Army was a nationwide charitable
organization that provided, among other things, programs to meet
the basic needs of daily life for those without the resources to
do so themselves. As part of such social service programs, the
Salvation Army provided low-income persons with food, shelter,

clothing and financial assistance to pay for utilities and rent.




c. Co-conspirator No. 1 was a resident and employee
of the City of Newark, New Jersey.

The Federal Programs

d. The United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD”) was an agency of the United States. By a
series of agreements that began in or about 1999, HUD provided
grant money to the City of Newark pursuant to the Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (“HOPWA”) program established
by the AIDS Housing Opportunity Act, Title 42, United States
Code, Section 12901 et geg. and the HOPWA Program Rule at Title
24, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 574. The City of Newark,
in turn, contracted with the Salvation Army to administer HOPWA
funds by providing rental assistance to low-income persons with
Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (“AIDS”). The HOPWA funds
provided to the Salvation Army were subject to the supervision
and control of HUD.

e. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”)
was an agency of the United States. Through its Emergency Food &
Shelter National Board Program, FEMA provided money to the
Salvation Army that was intended, among other things, to provide
rental assistance to persons with low income. The FEMA funds
provided to the Salvation Army were subject to the supervision

and control of FEMA.




The Salvation Army’s Rental Assistance Program

£. Between in or about October 1995 and in or about
July 2002, the Salvation Army received annual benefits in excess
of 510,000 under the HUD program, the FEMA program, or both, that
were intended to provide, among other things, rental assistance
to persons with low income.

g. It was the standard practice of the Salvation Army
to require that potential recipients of rental assistance provide
documentation to support the issuance of checks on their behalf.
Such documents would include, for example, driver’s licenses and
other identification, lease agreements, Complaints for Eviction,
and Warrants for Removal. Salvation Army caseworkers would
maintain copies of these documents in a file for each client. 1If
éppropriate after reviewing the client file, caseworkers would
seek approval from their supervisor to provide rental assistance
for the client.

h. If approved by the supervisor, a Check Request
Form and second set of client documents would be forwarded to
defendant LEROY BROWN. In his capacity as Financial Manager for
the Salvation Army, defendant LEROY BROWN had the responsibility
to issue checks for intended recipients of rental assistance.

i. Before issuing such checks, defendant LEROY BROWN
was required to obtain the approval of the Salvation Army’s Area

Coordinator. The checks that defendant LEROY BROWN generated




contained both a Power of Attorney signature line and a
countersignature line. The Area Coordinator was authorized to
sign at the Power of Attorney signature line and defendant LEROY
BROWN was an authorized countersignatory.

J. It was the standard practice of the Salvation Army
to mail rental assistance checks directly to its clients’
landlords and make such checks payable to the landlords.

The Charge

2. From at least in or about October 1995 to in or
about July 2002, in Newark, in the District of New Jersey and
elsewhere, defendant

LEROY BROWN
being an agent of the Salvation Army, did knowingly and willfully
conspire and agree with others to embezzle, steal, obtain by
fraud, and otherwise without authority knowingly convert to the
use of persons other than the rightful owner, broperty that was
valued at approximately $385,760.00 that was owned by and under
the care, custody and control of the Salvation Army, which
received, in each one-year period from in or about 1995 through
in or about 2002, benefits in excess of $10,000 under federal
programs, including HUD’s HOPWA program and FEMA's Emergency Food
and Shelter National Board Program, contrary to Title 18, United

States Code, Section 666 (a) (1) (a).







